FINDING OF SUITABILITY FOR EARLY TRANSFER

(FOSET)

FINDING OF SUITABILITY FOR EARLY TRANSFER WITH A CERCLA 120(h)(3) COVENANT DEFERRAL HOUSING AREAS AND FORMER GARRISON PARCELS

. G

FORMER FORT ORD, ČALIFORNIA

December 2001

TABLE OF CONTENTS

0.1	PURP	OSE			1			
2.0	PROP	PERTY DESCRIPTION						
3.0	NATIO	ONAL E	ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (NEPA) COMPLIANCE					
4.0	ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY							
	4.1	All parcels:						
	4.1	4.1.1						
		4.1.2	POLYC	HLORINATED BIPHENYL (PCB)	4			
		4.1.3		DES.				
	4.2		Specific I	nformation:	5			
		4.2.1	Parcel L	2.1 (Building 2056 & 2058)	5			
		1.2.1	4.2.1.1		5			
			4.2.1.2	LEAD-BASED PAINT (LBP)	6			
			4.2.1.3	RADIOLOGICAL				
			4.2.1.4	SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMU)	6			
			4.2.1.5	ORDNANCE AND EXPLOSIVE (OE)	6			
			4.2.1.6	INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IPR)	6			
			4.2.1.7	COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATIO				
				ACT (CERFA)	7			
			4.2.1.8	GROUNDWATER MONITORING WELLS	7			
		4.2.2	Parcels 1	E4.1.1, E4.2, and a portion of E4.3.1 (Patton and Abrams Park)				
			4.2.2.1	ASBESTOS				
			4.2.2.2	LEAD BASED PAINT	8			
			4.2.2.3	RADIOLOGICAL	8			
			4.2.2.4	ORDANCE & EXPLOSIVE (OE)	8			
			4.2.2.5	UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)	11			
			4.2.2.6	ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTs)	11			
			4.2.2.7	SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMUs)	11			
			4.2.2.8	COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACITATION				
				ACT (CERFA)	11			
			4.2.2.9	GROUNDWATER MONITORING	12			
			4.2.2.10	LANDFILLS				
		4.2.3	Parcels !	L2.4.2, L2.4.3.1, L2.4.3.2, L32.4.1.2 (formerly a portion of L32.4.1).	12			
					12 12			
			4.2.3.1	ASBESTOS	12 12			
			4.2.3.2	LEAD-BASED PAINT	12 13			
			4.2.3.3	RADIOLOGICAL	13			
			4.2.3.4	UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)	13			
			4.2.3.5	ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTs)	 12			
			4.2.3.6	SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMUs)ORDWANCE & EXPLOSIVE (OE)	13			
			4.2.3.7	INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)	14			
			4.2.3.8 4.2.3.9	COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATION)N			
			4.4.3.3	COMMITTING THE PROGRAMMENTAL RESTORDED THE PROGRAMMENT				

			ACT (CERFA)	15
		4.2.3.10		15
	4.2.4	Parcels S	31.3.1 and S1.5.2	15
		4.2.4.1	ASBESTOS	15
		4.2.4.2	LEAD-BASED PAINT	16
		4.2.4.3	RADIOLOGICAL	16
		4.2.4.4	UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)	16
		4.2.4.5	OIL WATER SEPARATORS	
		4.2.4.6	ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTs)	
		4.2.4.7	SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMUs)	
		4.2.4.8	ORDNANCE & EXPLOSIVES (OE)	17
		4.2.4.9	COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITAT	ION
		42410	ACT (CERFA)	۱۵ ۱۵
		4.2.4.10	GROUNDWATER MONTORINGINSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)	19
	425	4.2.4.11	INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)	19
	4.2.5		S1.4, S1.5.1.1, and E17 (formerly a portion of E2c.3.3)	19
		4.2.5.1	ASBESTOS	19
		4.2.5.2	LEAD-BASED PAINT	
		4.2.5.3	RADIOLOGICAL	20
		4.2.5.4	ORDNANCE & EXPLOSIVES (OE)	
		4.2.5.5	UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)	
		4.2.5.6	ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTs)	21
		4.2.5.7	SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMUs)	21
		4.2.5.8	INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)	22
		4.2.5.9	COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITAT	
			ACT (CERFA)	
		4.2.5.10		
	4.2.6		S2.1.3, S2.1.4.1, S2.5.1.1, S2.5.1.2, S2.5.2.1, and S2.5.2.2	23
		4.2.6.1	ASBESTOS	23
		4.2.6.2	LEAD-BASED PAINT	
		4.2.6.3	RADIOLOGICAL	
		4.2.6.4	ORDNANCE & EXPLOSIVE	
		4.2.6.5	UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)	
		4.2.6.6	INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)	25
		4.2.6.7	GROUNDWATER MONITORING	
		4.2.6.8	COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATACT (CERFA)	
		4.2.6.9	LANDFILLS	
5.0	DEED RESTR	UCTIONS	AND NOTIFICATIONS	27
6.0	PUBLIC COM	IMENTS		27
7.0	REGULATOR	COORDI	NATION	27
8.0	FINDING OF	SUITABII	LITY FOR EARLY TRANSFER	28
	•		-	

ATTACHMENTS

1. Environmental Response Obligation Addendum (EROA)

_ _____

- Regulatory Comments/Response Summary
 Site Maps/Plates Parcels
- 4. Site Map/Plates Landfills

FINDING OF SUITABILITY FOR EARLY TRANSFER (FOSET) WITH A CERCLA 120(h)(3) COVENANT DEFERRAL HOUSING AREAS AND FORMER GARRISON PARCELS FORMER FORT ORD, CALIFORNIA

1.0 PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of this Finding of Suitability for Early Transfer (FOSET) is to identify environmental factors of concern associated with the proposed property transfer and to demonstrate that the proposed property transfer prior to the completion of all remedial actions, with the appropriate land use controls, if required, is consistent with the protection of human health and the environment.

If a federal agency proposes to transfer by deed real property on which hazardous substances have been stored for one year or more, are known to have been released, or have been disposed of, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) requires a covenant indicating that all remedial action necessary to protect human health and the environment, with respect to any hazardous substances remaining on the property, has been taken prior to transfer of such property by deed. The required covenant may be deferred under certain conditions where it can be shown that the intended reuse of the property is consistent with protection of human health and the environment during the deferral period. The proposed reuse includes residential and mixed use.

- 1.2 The early transfer of the Housing and Garrison Parcels has been requested by the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA), California State University Monterey Bay (CSUMB), University of California Monterey Bay Education, Science and Technology Center (UCMBEST), Monterey Salinas Transit, and American Youth Hostel for the purpose of assisting in the economic recovery of the area and preventing further job and revenue loss by expediting reuse. The property proposed for early transfer is described in Section 2.
- 1.3 A determination of the environmental condition of the Property was made by the United States Army by reviewing existing environmental and ordnance and explosives (OE) documents and making associated visual site inspections in 1997 and 1999. The documents reviewed included:
 - (1) Contaminated Surface Soil Remediation, Fort Ord, CA (IAROD), (February 23, 1994),
 - (2) Final Community Environmental Response Facilitation Act (CERFA) Report (April 1994),
 - (3) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) Region IX's concurrence to the CERFA Report (19 April 1994),

- (4) Asbestos Survey Report, Fort Ord Installation (April 26, 1993),
- (5) U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency, Industrial Hygiene Survey No. 55-71-R25A-94, Lead-Based Paint Inspection in Military Housing Fort Ord, California, 1 November 1993 11 March 1994 (June 1994),
- (6) Environmental Baseline Survey (EBS) for the University of California at Santa Cruz Parcel (March 1994),
- (7) EBS for the California State University Monterey Bay Parcel (December 1994),
- (8) EBS for the McKinney Homeless Act Group A Parcels (August 1995),
- (9) EBS for the Main Garrison Parcels (September 1997),
- (10) EBS for the Surplus II Parcels (November 1997),
- (11) Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study, Fort Ord, CA, (October 1995),
- (12) Archive Search Reports (December 1993, November 1994, and December 1997),
- (13) Site 39 Data Summary and Work Plan (February 1994),
- (14) Contractor OE sampling and removal after action reports for OE Sites 1, 2, 4A, 6, 13A, 13B, 31, and 39,
- (15) Action Memorandum 1, Twelve Sites (April 1998),
- (16) Literature Review Report (January 2000),
- (17) Track 0 Technical Memorandum (January 2000),
- (18) Draft Report of Patton Park Lead Base Paint Risk Assessment, (December 2000)
- (19) Various Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) and Finding of Suitability to Lease (FOSL) documents

Location	Action_	Date Signed
Building 2058	FOST	10 March 1999
Patton/Abrams Park	FOST	02 March 1999
CSUMB 3A & 5B	FOST	18 September 1998
Main Garrison Category 4	FOST	10 July 1998
UCMBEST Phase IIA & III	FOST	13 June 1997

12.5

(20) Various remedial investigation/feasibility studies documents, records of decision, remedial action reports, and subsequent approval memoranda.

The results of this document review indicate that the Property is suitable for early transfer to FORA, California State University Monterey Bay (CSUMB), University of California Monterey Bay Education, Science and Technology Center (UCMBEST), Monterey Salinas Transit, and American Youth Hostel, and are consistent with the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Reuse Plan.

2.0 PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

The property proposed for early transfer includes 20 parcels totaling approximately 767 acres. The areas were formerly used for family and troop housing, administrative, and maintenance activities.

Parcel No	Acres	Description//Recipient	FOST	<u></u>	
L2.1	4.5	Transit Center Building 2058 // Monterey Salinas Transit	1	Building 2058	•
E4.1.1	154.0	Housing, lower Patton // EDC FORA	111	Patton/Abrams Pk	
E4.2	66.0	Housing, upper Patton // EDC FORA	†	Patton/Abrams Pk	
E4.3.1 (portion)	183.0	Housing, Abrams // EDC FORA	 	Patton/Abrams Pk	
L2.4.2	13.2	Maintenance Center // Monterey Salinas Transit		Surplus II Area B	
L2.4.3.1	1 5	Building 4448 // Monterey Salinas Transit		Surplus II Area B	
L2.4.3.2	0.1	Building 4448 // Monterey Salinas Transit		Surplus II Area B	
L32.4.1.2 (formerly a portion of L32.4.1)	16.2	Development Mixed Use/Retail // EDC FORA		Surplus II Area B	·
L37	4.7	Building 4419, 4420, 4421, 4423 // Youth Hostel		Surplus II Area B	
S1.3.1	38.2	Maintenance Area 3A // CSUMB	īv	CSUMB 3A &5B	
\$1.5.2	18.3	Facilities Engineer Area // CSUMB		CSUMB 3A_&5B	
\$1.4	90.5	South Campus // CSUMB	v	Main Garrison 4	
\$1.5.1.1	96.3	Maintenance Area // CSUMB		Main Garrison 4	
E17 (formerly a portion of E2c.3.3)	3.8	Light Fighter Lodge // EDC		Main Garrison	
S2.1.3	14.5	IRP Site 35 // UCMBEST	VII IIA and	UCMBEST III	Phases

Parcel No	Acres	Description//Recipient	FOST ·
S2.1.4.1	16.0	IRP Site 34 // UCMBEST	UCMBEST Phases IIA and III
\$2.5.1.1	15.5	Office Park/Transit Center // UCMBEST	UCMBEST Phases IIA and III
S2.5.1.2	2.3	Office Park/Transit Center // UCMBEST	UCMBEST Phases IIA and III
S2.5.2.1	25.1	Office Park // UCMBEST	UCMBEST Phases IIA and III
S2.5.2.2	4.0	Office Park // UCMBEST	UCMBEST ST Phases IIA and III

3.0 NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (NEPA) COMPLIANCE

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) requirements for this transfer were satisfied by the analyses conducted in the final Environmental Impact Statement Fort Ord Disposal and Reuse (FEIS), dated June 1993, the subsequent FEIS Record of Decision dated December 1993, the Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement Fort Ord Disposal and Reuse (SEIS), dated June 1996 and the subsequent SEIS Record of Decision dated June 1997.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY

4.1 All parcels:

4.1.1 **RADON**

No radon levels above 4 picocuries per liter (pCi/L) were detected on any of the parcels during a 1990 survey.

4.1.2 POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYL (PCB)

PCBs have been used widely as coolants and lubricants in transformers, capacitors, and other electrical equipment like fluorescent light ballasts. There have been no reported releases of polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB)-contaminated dielectric fluids on any of the parcels. Notice of the potential for the presence of Polychlorinated Biphenlys in fluorescent light ballasts is stated in the Environmental Response Obligation Addendum (EROA) of this document (Attachment 1). This notice will be included in the deed.

4

4.1.3 PESTICIDES

Routine application of pesticides occurred around the residential areas on the former Fort Ord, based on available pesticide applications records which date from 1985 to the present. The records show the type of pesticide used, location and date of application, final application concentration and the name of the applicator. All pesticides were used in accordance with labeled instructions. The following is a list of pesticides applied in residential areas of Fort Ord during this time. With the exception of Diazinon, these pesticides are still in use today and are considered safe for use in residential or outdoor areas.

- Carbamates methylcarbamates (Ficam, Baygon); carbaryl (Sevin); propoxur (Terminate)
- Chloropyrifos (Dursban, Empire)
- Combination Pesticides Purge (diazinon, pyrethrin, piperonyl butoxide); ULD-100 and Drione (pyrethrin, piperonyl butoxide and petroleum distillate); Precore (methorprene and permethrin)
- Diazinon
- Herbicides: glyphosate (Round-up, Rodeo); 2-4D; Amitrole; sulfometuron methyl (Oust)
- Propetamphos (Safrotin)
- Pyrethrum and synthetic Pyrethroids pyrethrin; phenothrin; resmethrin; cypermethrin (Demon); cyfluthrin (Tempo)
- Rodenticides: chlorophacinone; strychnine; brodificoum; zinc phosphide
- Thurgicide (Dipel)

4.2 Parcel Specific Information:

4.2.1 Parcel L2.1 (Building 2056 & 2058)

Two buildings (2056 and 2058) are located on the Parcel (Plate 1). Building 2058 was previously used as a self-service supply center. Building 2056 is a lavatory.

4.2.1.1 ASBESTOS

An asbestos survey conducted by the Army shows that Building 2058 contains nonfriable ACM rated 13 and in good condition. No ACM was found in Building 2056. The Army does not intend to remove or repair the ACM in Building 2058, but discloses it existence. Any recommended inspection of ACM present in the building is the responsibility of the recipient.

.....

Notice of the presence of ACM is stated in the EROA (Attachment 1). This notice will be included in the deed.

4.2.1.2 LEAD-BASED PAINT (LBP)

Buildings 2056 and 2058 were constructed in 1941 and are presumed to contain lead-based paint (LBP). The Army does not intend to abate the LBP presumed to be present in these structures because (in accordance with the residential lead-based paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992) they are not intended to be used as residences. The paint on Building 2056 is in good to excellent condition. The paint on Building 2058 is in poor to good condition. Appropriate LBP notice is provided in the EROA of this document (Attachment 1). This notice will be included in the deed.

4.2.1.3 RADIOLOGICAL

No radiological surveys were conducted within the buildings because radioactive commodities were reportedly not used or stored in the buildings.

4.2.1.4 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMU)

_

No solid waste management units, nor underground or aboveground storage tanks, were present on the parcel.

4.2.1.5 ORDNANCE AND EXPLOSIVE (OE)

No OE sites are known to be on or adjacent to this parcel. However, because Ordnance & Explosives were used throughout the history of Fort Ord, the potential for OE to be present on the parcel exists. Appropriate OE notice is provided in the EROA of this document (Attachment 1). This notice will be included in the deed.

4.2.1.6 INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)

The Building 2058 Parcel is immediately adjacent to IRP Site 13. The Site 13 investigation, which was conducted under the Fort Ord Basewide RI/FS program, focused on potential contamination along the railroad right-of-way. An area near Building 2053 (south of the Parcel), where chemicals were reportedly discarded, was also investigated. Site characterization activities consisted of a soil gas survey at two locations adjacent to Building 2053 and drilling 29 soil borings along the right-of-way. Based on the results of site characterization activities, Site 13 was categorized as a No Action Site. The "plug-in" No Action Record of Decision (NoAROD) for all No Action sites was signed by the Army and the regulatory agencies in the spring of 1995. Documentation that site-specific no action criteria were met is provided through the Approval Memoranda process. The overall process is referred to as the "plug-in" process because the Approval Memoranda plug into the NoAROD. The No Action Approval Memorandum for Site 13 was signed by the Army on May 22, 1995 and approved by the regulatory agencies in the fall of 1995.

13.52 13.52 13.53

4.2.1.7 COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATION ACT (CERFA)

The final CERFA report identifies the Building 2058 Parcel as being within CERFA Disqualified Parcel 8 and CERFA Qualified Parcel 100. CERFA Parcel 8 was disqualified due to the storage of hazardous substances in Buildings 2030, 2031, 2032, 2033, and 2034. None of these buildings are located on the Parcel. Parcel 100 was qualified because of the presence of ACM, probable LBP and the potential storage and use of radioactive commodities. As stated above radioactive commodities were reportedly not used or stored in Buildings 2056 or 2058.

4.2.1.8 GROUNDWATER MONITORING WELLS

No groundwater monitoring wells are present on the Parcel.

4.2.2 Parcels E4.1.1, E4.2, and a portion of E4.3.1 (Patton and Abrams Park)

Four hundred and ten single and multi-family housing units and six sewage lift stations are located on Parcels E4.1.1, E4.2, and E4.3.1 (Plates/Maps 2 and 3 – Attachment 3). The six sewage lift stations were transferred by deed via Fort Ord Reuse Authority to the Marina Coast Water District.

4.2.2.1 ASBESTOS

Asbestos surveys have been completed for the 410 housing units as part of a facility-wide asbestos survey. Asbestos surveys were not completed for the six lift station buildings. These surveys show that all 410 housing units contain friable and/or nonfriable asbestos containing material (ACM). Two housing units (8416 and 8452) contain friable and nonfriable ACM (pipe fitting insulation and jacket in furnace and laundry room, respectively) rated 1 (immediate total removal recommended). Twenty-three housing units, listed below, contain friable and nonfriable ACM (duct tape and sheet floor mastic) rated 2 (immediate repair, short-term removal recommended).

-	6074	-	6083	-	6090	-	8661
-	6075	-	6084	-	6091	-	8764
_	6076	-	6085	_	6092	-	
-	6077	_	6086	-	6093	_	
_	6080	-	6087	_	6126	-	• -
-	6081	-	6088	-	6127	-	
_	6082	_	6089	_	8629	_	

The remaining 385 housing units contain friable and/or nonfriable ACM in fair to good condition rated 9 to 13. The Army does not intend to remove the ACM in these buildings, but discloses its existence. Prior to occupancy recipient should remediate ACM rated 1 through 5. Any recommended inspection of ACM present in these buildings will be the responsibility of the recipient. Appropriate ACM notice is provided in the EROA of this document (Attachment 1) and will be included in the deed.

4.2.2.2 LEAD BASED PAINT

The housing units within Parcels E4.1.1 and E4.2 (Patton Park) were constructed between 1962 and 1969. The paint on the Patton Park housing units is in poor condition. Lead surveys have been completed within the Patton housing areas (Parcels E4.1.1 and E4.2) and the Abrams housing area (Parcel E4.3.1). The first survey conducted in November 1993 through March 1994, included the sampling of the interior and exterior components (e.g., walls, doorframes, baseboards, windowsills, downspouts, etc.) of 150 randomly selected housing units in Patton Park and 50 housing units in Abrams Park. Of the 150 units sampled in Patton Park at least one component tested positive for lead in 125 of the 150 units sampled. None of the Abrams Park units tested positive for lead. Additional lead sampling (wipe, chip and soil) was completed in Patton Park in December 2000 as part of the LBP risk assessment. Wipe and paint chip samples were collected from the interior of 148 randomly selected Patton housing units. A limited number of windowsill and floor wipe samples had lead dust results exceeding allowable levels for those surfaces. Paint chip samples (466) were collected from locations of paint deterioration. Results of the paint chip sampling confirmed and assessed the LBP associated with the Patton housing units. Four hundred and seventy-nine composite soil samples were collected from Parcels E4.1.1 and E4.2 using random sampling protocol and analyzed for lead. The samples were collected from the housing unit drip lines and mid-yard locations and from playgrounds associated with the housing areas. With the exception of two mid-yard samples, none of the lead levels in the soil samples exceeded the EPA, HUD, or State of California lead criteria. Two of the mid-yard sample results exceeded the State of California allowable lead limits (1000 mg/kg) for lead in non-play areas. No sampling for lead in soil has occurred on Parcel E4.3.1. HUD guidance requires treatment including cleaning of components and lead stabilization (if necessary) in units with excessive lead dust levels, including similar components in the housing grouping that were untested, as part of an interim control or in-place management program. Deteriorated LBP surfaces should be stabilized pending abatement, as part of an interim control corrective action for in-place management of LBP. Appropriate LBP notice is provided in the EROA (Attachment 1) and will be included in the deed.

4.2.2.3 RADIOLOGICAL

No radiological surveys have been conducted within the buildings because no radioactive materials were reportedly used or stored in the buildings.

4.2.2.4 ORDANCE & EXPLOSIVE (OE)

The current approximate extent of each potential OE site adjacent to the parcels is shown on Plates 2, 3 and 5 (Attachment 3). However, because OE was used throughout the history of Fort Ord, the potential exists for OE to be present on the parcels. This notice will be included in the deed.

OE Site 1 was identified as a flamethrower range on Fort Ord training facilities maps from the late 1950s and early 1960s. An OE contractor completed sampling of OE Site 1 in 1994 and found one inert practice mine (OE scrap). It was recommended that additional grids be sampled

in the area between OE Site 1 and adjacent OE Site 6. Eight additional grids were sampled, and 5 inert practice mines (OE scrap) were found. In accordance with recommendations in the Phase 1 EE/CA, confirmatory sampling was conducted. In 1997, the OE contractor resurveyed the OE Site 1 grid locations and the site boundary. In February 1998, three additional grids were sampled and no evidence of OE was found. New expanded site boundaries for OE Site 1 were established through the Archives Search investigation, and four additional grids were sampled in open areas within the expanded site. Three OE scrap items, expended practice mine fuzes and one expended flamethrower ignition cartridge, were found. On the basis of the site investigation results, no further action was recommended (OE Sampling After Action Report, Site OE-1, August 1999). As shown on Plate 2, developed land separates OE Site 1 and Parcel E4.1.1.

OE Site 2, Pete's Pond, was identified in the Archives Search Report as a chemical training area and a landmine warfare training area. OE Site 2 was sampled for OE in 1994, and two expended inert items (OE scrap) were found. A portion of OE Site 2 overlaps Installation and Restoration Program (IRP) Site 16 and is adjacent to IRP Site 17. During the investigation and remediation of IRP Sites 16 and 17, approximately 470 2.36-inch inert practice rockets were removed from burial pits located in former landfill (Attachment 4) areas within Sites 16 and 17. Landfill areas within OE Site 2 were fully excavated in 1997. Although ordnance was found at OE Site 2, the items were buried in disposal pits and were not associated with ordnance use at the site. The burial area within OE Site 2 has been excavated, backfilled and re-graded. Results of the ASR indicate that OE Site 2 was not an impact area. OE Site 2 was identified as requiring no further sampling and or/removal actions for OE (Action Memorandum 1, Twelve Sites, April 1998).

OE Site 6 (a mine and booby-trap training area) was identified through the archives search. The boundary of the OE site is based on the delineation of the site on Fort Ord training facilities maps from the 1950s. An OE contractor completed sampling of the site and found one inert training mine (OE scrap). No evidence of the use of live OE was found, and the site was identified as requiring no further sampling and or/removal actions for OE (Action Memorandum 1, Twelve Sites, April 1998).

OE Site 13A was identified in the ASR as a practice mortar range, and it is believed that only practice mortars, inert training devices, were used here. In 1994, boundaries for OE Site 13A were established based on the review of Fort Ord training facilities maps. The OE site was formerly located within the current Abrams Park housing area (Plate 3). No evidence of OE was found during the construction of the housing area. An OE contractor completed the initial sampling of the site in 1994 and found no evidence of OE use. Based on the intended future use of the land that includes OE Site 13A, the Phase 1 EE/CA recommended additional confirmatory sampling. In 1997, the OE removal contractor resurveyed the 1994 sample grids and the OE site boundary. Two additional confirmatory sample grids were established and sampled. Because twenty grids within the site had already been sampled and the western end of the site (landfill) was being excavated, the two grids were located just outside of the OE site at its eastern end. Two OE scrap items (expended grenade fuse and an expended illumination signal) were found in one of the two sample grid locations. On the basis of the investigation results, no further action

was recommended (OE Sampling After Action Report, Site OE-13A, April 1999). As shown on Plate 3, developed land separates OE Site 13A and adjacent Parcel E4.3.1.

A portion of OE Site 13A overlies a portion of the OU 2 sanitary landfill (Attachment 4) (Area A). The southwestern portion of OE Site 13A was excavated in 1996 through 1998, as part of the relocation of the landfill material buried in Area A. During the excavation numerous OE items were found and removed. All landfill disposal areas, including land within the OE footprint, have been excavated, and the excavated areas have been backfilled or re-graded. Although ordnance was found within landfill materials excavated from the OE site, the items were related to disposal and were not associated with ordnance use at OE Site 13A.

A portion of Parcel E4.3.1 (Abrams Park) was not included in this transfer because several OE-related items (a live rifle grenade, scrap hand grenade primer detonators, and scrap 40mm signal cartridges) were found during the excavation and placement of a pipeline associated with the OU 2 groundwater remediation system. The area excluded from transfer is adjacent to a portion of the former OU 2 landfill (Section 4.2.2.7). The presence of the OE-related items is presumed to be related to landfill activities that occurred in this area prior to the construction of Abrams Road and the Abrams housing area.

Several training areas (Mortar Squares, a Proficiency Test Area and a Wire Entanglement Area) lie within or adjacent to Parcels E4.1.1and E4.2. Three mortar squares were identified on training facilities maps from the 1950s and 1960s within or adjacent to Parcel E4.1.1. Mortar squares were used for the practice of setting up and aiming of weapons or dry fire training. No evidence has been found that would support the use of live ordnance at the mortar squares. Proficiency Testing Area 2, located within Parcel E4.1.1, was identified on a circa-1954 training facilities map. An interview with a former range control officer indicated that proficiency test areas were used to test a soldier's proficiency in breaking down and setting up weapons. According to the former range control officer, the proficiency test areas were not used for live firing exercises. No evidence has been found to indicate the use of live ammunition in the proficiency test areas. The Wire Entanglement Area, a physical training area, was shown on 1945 and 1946 Fort Ord Master Plans. The Wire Entanglement Area was located in the northern portion of Parcel E4.2. No further information regarding its use was available. The training areas were located adjacent to developed areas of Fort Ord near housing areas and actively used roads. No range fans, typically associated with live fire areas, were shown on the historic maps associated with the three training areas. Additionally, all three training areas are within an area designated on 1945 and 1946 Fort Ord Master Plan Maps as a "Well Area, No Artillery Firing Or Demolitions."

Additionally, the Site 39 Data Summary and Work Plan identified an area, 75mm Pack Howitzer Firing Area, which partially overlaps Parcel E4.1.1. The identification of this area is based on the results of an interview with a retired Fort Ord military engineer. The engineer stated that he had heard that this area was used in the early 1900s by cavalry stationed at the Presidio of Monterey. No evidence indicating the use of this area for howitzer firing was found during the archive search and the literature review. Land where the 75mm Pack Howitzer Firing Area was

reportedly located, was not purchased by the Army until 1940. Two OE Sites (1 and 6) fall within the area delineated as the 75mm Pack Howitzer Firing Area. Field investigations in and around OE Sites 1 and 6, which included site walks, a GPS survey of the OE site boundaries and OE sampling, turned up no evidence of 75mm howitzer use.

4.2.2.5 UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)

Six former underground storage tanks (USTs 4970.1, 6020.1, 6054.1, 6120.1, 6130.1 and 6225.1) associated with sewage lift stations were located on the parcels. The former USTs have been removed and closure granted by the Monterey County Department of Health. USTs 4970.1, 6020.1, 6054.1, and 6120.1 were granted closure in a letter dated April 6, 1994; USTs 6130.1 and 6225.1 were granted closure in a letter dated December 13, 1995.

4.2.2.6 ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTs)

Two of the six former underground storage tanks on the Property were replaced with aboveground storage tanks (ASTs). The ASTs contain diesel fuel (tanks 6130-B-1, and 6225) and are used to support generators at sewage lift stations. These ASTs were transferred via Fort Ord Reuse Authority to Marina Coast Water District.

4.2.2.7 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMUs)

One solid waste management unit (FTO-002, OU2 Landfill) is immediately adjacent to a portion of Parcel E4.3.1 (Abrams Park) (Attachment 4). A remedial action (RA) involving the excavation of refuse buried within the adjacent property was conducted in 1996 through 1998. The RA involved the excavation and relocation of landfill material buried on the north side of Imjin Road. This area has been completely excavated and clean-up goals have been met. Activities related to the landfill closure will not adversely affect this transfer.

4.2.2.8 COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATION ACT (CERFA)

The final CERFA Report identifies the transfer parcels as being within CERFA Parcel 202 and 128 and CERFA Disqualified Parcel 4. The State Department of Toxic Substances Control and U.S. EPA issued letters of concurrence (dated April 18 and 19, 1994, respectively) identifying CERFA Qualified Parcel 128 as an "uncontaminated" parcel. Parcel 4 was disqualified due to the location of the Property above the Fort Ord Landfill (OU 2) groundwater contamination plume. Remediation of the contaminated groundwater at OU 2 is underway. Thirty-three groundwater monitoring wells, eight extraction wells, and six injection/infiltration wells are located on the parcels. Fifteen of the monitoring wells are located on Parcel E4.2, and eighteen monitoring wells are located on Parcel E4.3.1. Trichloroethene (TCE) was detected at a maximum concentration of 43.7 micrograms per liter (June 1999) in groundwater beneath the parcels. The eight extraction wells and six injection/infiltration wells are located on Parcel E4.3.1. The extraction and injection wells are part of the OU 2 groundwater pump-and-treat remediation system. The Army has received concurrence from the U.S. EPA (4 January 1996) that the pump-and-treat system for remediation of the OU 2-groundwater plume is in place and

.

operating "properly and successfully." The Army will reserve the rights of access to all wells on the parcels and the right to place additional wells as required. Tampering with the wells will be prohibited.

4.2.2.9 GROUNDWATER MONITORING

The Baseline Risk Assessment for OU 2 indicates that the groundwater does not pose a threat to occupants of the buildings on the parcels, provided that groundwater from the contaminated aquifer is not used as a drinking water source. Well drilling and use of groundwater will be prohibited. Notice of the potential for the present of contaminated groundwater is stated in the EROA of this document and will be included in the deed (Attachment 1).

- -

4.2.2.10 LANDFILLS

This property appears to be located within 1000 feet of the landfill at Fort Ord. DTSC understands that methane concentrations in excess of the regulatory limit of 5% by volume have been detected at the landfill boundary. DTSC has been advised by the California Integrated Waste Management Board that given this proximity, there is a potential concern for gas build-up within any structures (including buildings, subsurface vaults, utilities) located within 1000 feet of a landfill. Future landowners should refer to Title 27, section 21190 of the California Code.

4.2.3 Parcels L2.4.2, L2.4.3.1, L2.4.3.2, L32.4.1.2 (formerly a portion of L32.4.1), and L37

The portion of L32.4.1 to be transferred includes 6 buildings on 16.2 acres. Parcel L2.4.3.1 includes one building on 1.5 acres. Parcel L37 includes 4 buildings on 4.7 acres. Parcel L2.4.2 includes 5 buildings on 13.2 acres. No buildings are located on Parcel L2.4.3.2 (Plate 4).

4.2.3.1 ASBESTOS

Asbestos surveys have been completed for the sixteen buildings on the parcels as part of a facility-wide asbestos survey. These surveys show that 14 of the buildings contain friable and nonfriable ACM. Of the 13 buildings, three (4419, 4470 and 4560) contain ACM rated 1 to 5. Ten contain ACM rated 6 to 13. Three buildings (4421, 4437 and 4445) have no ACM. The Army does not intend to remove the ACM in these buildings, but discloses its existence. Recommended inspection of ACM present in these buildings is the responsibility of the recipient. Appropriate notice of ACM is stated in the EROA of this document and will be included in the deed (Attachment 1).

4.2.3.2 LEAD-BASED PAINT

The sixteen buildings on the parcels were constructed prior to 1978 or have unknown dates of construction and are presumed to contain lead-based paint (LBP). The Army does not intend to abate the LBP presumed to be present in these structures because (in accordance with the residential lead-based paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992) they are not intended to be used as

residences. Appropriate LBP notice is provided in the EROA of this document and will be included in the deed (Attachment 1).

4.2.3.3 RADIOLOGICAL

One building within Parcel L32.4.1 (4469) was identified for a radiological survey. The building was surveyed and sampled by the U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency (AEHA, currently known as U.S. Army Center for Health Promotion and Preventive Medicine [USACHPPM]) in 1994. No radiological health hazards associated with the building were identified by AEHA. In a letter dated October 1, 1997, the Department of Health Services (DHS) concurred that Building 4469 could be released for unrestricted use.

4.2.3.4 UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)

One former underground storage tank (UST 4441.1) was located on Parcel L2.4.2. The former UST, a waste diesel tank, has been removed and closure granted by the Monterey County Department of Health. Closure of UST was granted in a letter dated December 13, 1995.

4.2.3.5 ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTs)

Three ASTs (444.1, 4460.1 and 4460.2) were identified on the parcels. The three ASTs are empty and inactive.

4.2.3.6 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMUs)

No solid waste management units were present on the parcels.

4.2.3.7 ORDNANCE & EXPLOSIVE (OE)

No OE sites within the parcels. Two potential OE sites (OE Site 4A and OE Site 13B) are adjacent to the road next to Parcel L2.4.2 (Plate 4). The OE site boundaries shown are based on information provided in the draft Revised ASR. Preliminary surveys, including the ASR and ASR Supplement No. 1 (which included interviews with former Fort Ord employees), resulted in identification of a number of potential OE sites. Some of the sites were identified by more than one source, resulting in multiple site boundaries for many of the potential OE sites. Subsequently, the Army conducted additional focused studies including OE sampling, mapping, global positioning system (GPS) surveys, OE removal actions, and the expanded ASR process that was performed as part of the Phase 1 and 2 Engineering Evaluation Cost Analysis (EE/CAs). These additional studies have resulted in a refinement of the boundaries of the potential OE sites. Although no ordnance sites are located on the parcels, the potential exists for OE to be present because OE was used throughout the history of Fort Ord. This notice will be included in the deed.

OE Site 4A was identified as a Chemical, Biological, and Radiological (CBR) Training Area on historical maps. OE sampling of this site resulted in the discovery of 1 rifle grenade, 2 illumination signals, small arms ammunition, as well as grenade fuzes found in a burial pit. On

-17.

the basis of the sampling results, a removal action to a depth of 4 feet was completed over the entire OE site. One OE item (illumination signal) was found and removed during the removal action. On the basis of the investigation results, no further action was recommended (Sampling And Removal After Action Report, Site OE-4A, January 1999). As shown on Plate 4, developed and undeveloped land separates the northern boundary of OE Site 4A and the transfer parcels.

OE Site 13B was identified through the archive search as a practice mortar range. The site was identified on training facilities maps in the 1950s. Based on the presence of established developed areas west of the site it is expected that any live firing occurring on the site would have been toward the east away from the developed area. In addition, from the mid-1950s until base closure, barracks were located just to the west of the OE-site. The boundaries of the site were defined and sampling was performed. Sampling of the site confirmed that the site had been used extensively as an OE training area. On the basis of the sampling results, a removal action to a depth of 4 feet was completed over the entire site. OE items found and removed included pyrotechnics, smoke grenades, and projectiles of various sizes. On the basis of the investigation results, no further action was recommended (OE Removal After Action Report, Site OE-13B, January 2000). OE Site 13B is separated from the adjacent Parcel S1.3.1 by a road.

During the removal action at OE Site 13B, two partial Chemical Agent Identification Sets (CAIS) were found. Two cardboard tubes containing intact glass vials were discovered inside of metal canisters buried at depths of 1 and 1.5 feet. The sets were removed by the Technical Escort Unit of Tooele Utah and transferred to their Aberdeen Proving Ground facility.

OE Site 39 is located to the south of Parcel L32.4.1. OE Site 39 was identified through the archive search as a mine and booby trap training area. The boundary of the OE site was established based on the delineation of a training area on Fort Ord training facilities maps from the 1950s. The training area was identified as an area for further investigation. An ordnance removal contractor established sample grids within the site and sampling was performed. No evidence of OE was found and no further action was recommended (After Action Report, Sitestats/Gridstats OE Sampling, Site 24B-E And OE-39, December 1999). As shown on Plate 4, developed land separates the OE Site 39 boundary and Parcel L32.4.1.

4.2.3.8 INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)

A portion of one IRP Site (22) is located on Parcel L2.4.2. Site 22 (4400/4500 Motor Pools) was categorized as an Interim Action (IA) site and was included in the IA Record of Decision (ROD). The IA ROD was signed by the Army, DTSC and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in March 1994. The interim action, which was completed in 1994, included soil excavation and soil sampling around a former grease rack. The IA occurred adjacent to Parcel L2.4.2. The Site 22 Confirmation Report was submitted to the regulatory agencies in May 1996. The US EPA concurred that contamination was adequately remediated at Site 22 in a letter dated September 19, 1996; Department of Toxic Substance Control (DSTC) concurred in June 1998.

4.2.3.9 COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATION ACT (CERFA)

The final CERFA report indicates that the transfer parcels are included in CERFA Disqualified Parcels 4, 28, 31, and 36; CERFA Qualified Parcels 114 and 132; and CERFA Parcels 192, 197, 198 and 213.

CERFA Disqualified Parcels: Parcel 4 was disqualified because this area is included in IRP Site 22. As described above, Site 22 was designated as an IA Site; however, the IA area is not within the transfer parcels. CERFA Parcel 28 was disqualified because IRP Site 10 is present within this parcel but IRP Site 10 is not within the transfer parcels. Parcels 31 and 36 were disqualified because of hazardous substance or petroleum storage. No hazardous substances or petroleum products are currently stored on these parcels. No releases of these substances were noted from these storage areas.

CERFA Qualified Parcels: Parcels 114 and 132 were qualified because (1) friable and nonfriable ACM was observed within the buildings and (2) LBP is probably present, based on the construction dates of the buildings within the parcels.

CERFA Parcels: Parcels 192, 197, 198, and 213 were determined to be uncontaminated in the final CERFA report. The U.S. EPA concurred with this categorization in a letter dated April 18, 1994. The California Environmental Protection Agency, Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) agreed with the uncontaminated categorization of parcels 192, 197, 198 and 213.

4.2.3.10 GROUNDWATER MONITORING WELLS

No groundwater monitoring wells are present on the Parcels.

4.2.4 Parcels S1.3.1 and S1.5.2

Forty-one buildings (including temporary structures) are located on these parcels (Plates 4 and 5 – Attachment 3). The buildings were associated with motor pools and were generally used for storage, administration, and vehicle maintenance. Following property transfer, all buildings located within Parcel S1.5.2, with the exception of Building 4899, are slated for demolition. Buildings 4538 and 4544 (Parcel S1.3.1) contain hydraulic lifts. The hydraulic lifts were inspected and no evidence of leakage or release was noted.

4.2.4.1 ASBESTOS

Asbestos surveys have been completed for all of the buildings as part of a facility-wide asbestos survey. The survey showed that three buildings (4536, 4537, and 4893) contain friable asbestos-containing material (ACM) rated 12 (management with 1-year inspection cycle). Twenty-seven buildings contain nonfriable ACM rated 13 (management with a 2-year [biannual] inspection cycle) and in good condition at the time of survey. The Army does not intend to remove the ACM in these buildings, but discloses its existence. Recommended inspection of ACM present in these buildings is the responsibility of the recipient. Ten buildings (4524, 4525,

Final

4541, 4557, 4887, 4888, 4889, 4892, R456, and R457) have no ACM. Asbestos survey data was not available for one of the temporary structures present in Parcel S1.3.1 (R459). See attachment 1 for restrictions.

4.2.4.2 LEAD-BASED PAINT

Thirty-eight of the 41 buildings and temporary structures on the parcels were constructed prior to 1978 or have unknown dates of construction and are presumed to contain lead-based paint (LBP). The Army does not intend to abate the LBP presumed to be present in these structures because (in accordance with the residential lead-based paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992) they are not intended to be used as residences. Lead is not likely to be present in soils on Parcel S1.3.1 because the areas around the buildings are entirely paved. Most of the area around the buildings on Parcel S1.5.2 is paved and as noted above, all buildings within Parcel S1.5.2 with the exception of Building 4899, are slated for demolition following property transfer. The area around Building 4899 is partially paved and the paint is in good condition. Appropriate LBP notice is provided herein (Attachment 1). Three buildings (4528, 4557, and 4887) were constructed in 1981 or later and are not expected to contain LBP.

4.2.4.3 RADIOLOGICAL

One structure within Parcel S1.5.2 (4886) was identified for a radiological survey. The structure, a wash pad, was surveyed and sampled by the U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency (AEHA, currently known as U.S. Army Center for Health Promotion and Preventive Medicine [USACHPPM]) in 1994. No radiological health hazards associated with the wash pad were identified by AEHA. The Department of Health Services (DHS) concurred that no further action was necessary for Wash Pad 4886 in a letter dated November 21, 1996.

4.2.4.4 UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)

Seventeen former USTs (4526.1, 4526.2, 4526.3, 4526.4, 4528.1, 4534.1, 4538.1, 4538.2, 4538.3, 4540.1, 4543.1, 4544.1, 4544.2, 4547.1, 4548.1, 4548.2, 4548.3) were located on Parcel S1.3.1; there are no former or existing USTs on Parcel S1.5.2. The 17 former USTs have been removed and the Monterey County Department of Health (MCDOH) has granted closure. USTs 4526.1 through 4526.4, 4540.1, and 4548.1 were granted closure in a letter dated April 6, 1994; USTs 4528.1, 4838.1, 4544.1, and 4548.2 were granted closure in a letter dated December 13, 1995; UST 4534.1 was granted closure in a letter dated August 22, 1996; USTs 4538.2, 4543.1, 4544.2, 4547.1, and 4548.3 were granted closure in a letter dated January 6, 1997; and UST 4538.3 was granted closure in a letter dated November 6, 1997.

4.2.4.5 OIL WATER SEPARATORS

Three oil water separators are located on Parcel S1.3.1. The oil water separators, typically associated with wash racks, were investigated in 1993. No evidence of cracks or releases was

noted in the investigation. A fourth oil water separator, located adjacent to UST 4538.3, was removed during the investigation of a release associated with the UST.

4.2.4.6 ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTs)

No aboveground storage tanks are present on these parcels.

4.2.4.7 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMUs)

Six inactive solid waste management units (SWMUs) are located on the parcels. The six SWMUs (FTO-004, FTO-005, FTO-018, FTO-025, FTO-026, FTO-035) were identified as being former hazardous material storage areas. No hazardous materials are presently stored on the parcels. A 1988 AEHA Interim Final Report (IFR) on SWMUs noted evidence of release, due to sloppy handling, at FTO-025 and FTO-026. Shortly after this, SWMUs FTO-025 and FTO-026 were moved to their present locations. Three borings were completed at the locations of former and current hazardous storage areas in 1989. No contamination was found in the samples collected from those borings. No evidence of release was reported at FTO-004, FTO-005, FTO-018, FTO-025, FTO-026, and FTO-035 in a 1993 SWMU update. No further action was recommended for each of the six SWMUs in the 1996 SWMU field investigation and data review.

4.2.4.8 ORDNANCE & EXPLOSIVES (OE)

No OE sites are known to be located within the parcels. Three potential OE sites (OE Site 13B, OE Site 2, and OE Site 31) are immediately adjacent to the parcels (Plates 4 and 5 – Attachment 3), OE Site 13B and OE Site 31 are immediately adjacent to Parcel S1.3.1. OE Site 2 is several hundred feet north-northwest of Parcel S1.5.2. Although no ordnance sites are located on the parcels, the potential exists for OE to be present because OE was used throughout the history of Fort Ord. This notice will be included in the deed.

OE Site 2, Pete's Pond, was identified in the Archives Search Report as a chemical training area and a landmine warfare training area. OE Site 2 was sampled for OE in 1994 and two expended inert items were found. A portion of OE Site 2 overlaps Installation and Restoration Program (IRP) Site 16 and is adjacent to IRP Site 17. During the investigation and remediation of IRP Sites 16 and 17, hundreds of 2.36-inch inert practice rockets were removed from burial pits located in former landfill areas within Sites 16 and 17. Landfill areas within OE Site 2 were fully excavated in 1997. Although ordnance was found at OE Site 2, the items were buried in disposal pits and were not associated with ordnance use at the site. The burial area within OE Site 2 has been excavated, backfilled and re-graded. Results of the ASR indicate that OE Site 2 was not an impact area. OE Site 2 was identified as requiring no further sampling and or/removal actions for OE (Action Memorandum 1, Twelve Sites, April 1998).

OE Site 13B was identified through the archive search as a practice mortar range. The site was identified on training facilities maps in the 1950s. Based on the presence of established developed areas west of the site it is expected that any live firing occurring on the site would have been toward the east away from the developed area. In addition, from the mid-1950s until

base closure, barracks were located just to the west of the OE-site. The boundaries of the site were defined and sampling was performed. Sampling of the site confirmed that the site had been used extensively as an OE training area. On the basis of the sampling results, a removal action to a depth of 4 feet was completed over the entire site. OE items found and removed included pyrotechnics, smoke grenades and projectiles of various sizes. On the basis of the investigation results, no further action was recommended (OE Removal After Action Report, Site OE-13B, January 2000). OE Site 13B is separated from the adjacent Parcel S1.3.1 by a road.

During the removal action at OE Site 13B, two partial Chemical Agent Identification Sets (CAIS) were found. Two cardboard tubes containing intact glass vials were discovered inside of metal canisters buried at depths of 1 and 1.5 feet. The sets were removed by the Technical Escort Unit of Tooele Utah and transferred to their Aberdeen Proving Ground facility.

OE Site 31, California State University Footprint, was identified as the result of impending Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) action and encompasses Sites OE-7, OE-8, OE-4C, OE-18, and an area that originally was identified as the northern portion of OE-13B. Sampling of these sites confirmed that they had been used extensively as OE training areas. On the basis of the sampling results, a removal action to a depth of 4 feet was completed over the entire site. Although several burial pit caches of ordnance were found and removed, and all the sampling results and other data support a conclusion that the ordnance actually fired at the CSU Footprint was limited to rifle grenades. OE items found during the OE removal actions included smoke grenades, fuzes, pyrotechnics (e.g., flares), and practice mines. Based on the presence of established developed areas west of the site it is expected that any live firing would have been toward the east away from the developed areas. OE Site 31 is separated from the adjacent Parcel S1.3.1 by a road.

Additionally, two non-live fire training areas, (Rifle Instruction Circles [RIC]) were formerly located on Parcel S1.3.1. The RIC were identified on training maps and aerial photographs. The RIC training areas were used in the practice of aiming/sighting of rifles. No evidence has been found that would support the use of live ammunition at the RIC.

4.2.4.9 COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATION ACT (CERFA)

The final CERFA report identifies the parcels as being within CERFA Disqualified Parcel No. 4 because of (1) the location of the Parcel S1.5.2 above the Fort Ord Landfill (OU 2) groundwater contamination plume and (2) inclusion of the Property in Installation Restoration Program (IRP) Sites 14, 15, and 22 (see below). Remediation of the contaminated groundwater at OU 2 is underway. The Army has received concurrence from the U.S. EPA (4 January 1996) that the pump-and-treat system for remediation of the OU 2 groundwater plume, is in place and operating "properly and successfully." Four groundwater monitoring wells, MW-22-01-A, -02-A, and -03-A (Parcel S1.3.1) and MW-OU2-54-180 (Parcel S1.5.2) are located on the parcels. Trichloroethene (TCE) was detected in Monitoring Well MW-OU2-54-180 at a maximum concentration of 0.72 micrograms per liter (µg/l) in the June 1999 sampling round. The Army

will reserve rights of access to all wells on the parcels and the right to place additional wells as required. Tampering with the wells will be prohibited.

4.2.4.10 GROUNDWATER MONTORING

The Baseline Risk Assessment for OU 2 indicates that the groundwater does not pose a threat to persons using the parcel provided that groundwater is not used as a drinking water source. Well drilling and use of groundwater will be prohibited.

4.2.4.11 INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)

Portions of three IRP sites are within the parcels. Parcel S1.5.2 includes portions of IRP Sites 14 and 15 (707th Battalion Maintenance Facility and DEH Yard, respectively); and Parcel S1.3.1 includes most of IRP Site 22 (4400/4500 Block Motor Pool, West). Sites 14, 15, and 22 were characterized as Interim Action (IA) sites and were included in the IA Record of Decision (ROD). The IA ROD was signed by the Army, DTSC, and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in March 1994. The interim actions were completed in 1995 and 1996 and included soil excavation, soil sampling, and excavation backfilling at each of the three IA sites. The interim action at IRP Site 22 occurred within Parcel S1.3.1; the interim actions at IRP Sites 14 and 15 occurred outside Parcel S1.5.2. The Draft Final Site Characterization Reports for IRP Sites 14, 15, and 22 were submitted to and approved by the U.S. EPA in the spring of 1995. The IA Confirmation Reports for IRP Sites 14, 15, and 22 were submitted to the regulatory agencies in February, August, and June 1996, respectively. The U.S. EPA concurred that remedial actions were completed and that no further remedial action was required at Sites 14, 15 and 22, in letters dated March 7, 1996, April 14, 1997, and September 19, 1996, respectively. DTSC concurred that no further remedial action was necessary at Sites 14 and 15 in letters dated February 11, 1998. Concurrence that the no further remedial action at Site 22 was granted by the DTSC in May 1998.

4.2.5 Parcels S1.4, S1.5.1.1, and E17 (formerly a portion of E2c.3.3)

Parcel S1.4 includes 18 buildings on 90.5 acres (Plate 4). Parcel S1.5.1.1 includes 85 buildings on 96.3 acres, and Parcel E17 includes 1 building on 3.8 acres (Plate 1).

4.2.5.1 ASBESTOS

Asbestos surveys have been completed for the 104 buildings on the parcels as part of a facility-wide asbestos survey. These surveys show that 82 buildings contain friable and nonfriable asbestos-containing materials (ACM). Seven buildings contained friable and nonfriable ACM rated 1 to 5 (immediate total removals to immediate repair with 1-year inspection cycle recommended). The remaining buildings contain friable and nonfriable ACM rated 8 to 13 (good to fair condition). The Army does not intend to remove the ACM in any of these buildings, but discloses its existence. Recommended inspection of ACM present in these buildings will be the responsibility of the recipient. See attachment 1 for restrictions.

4.2.5.2 LEAD-BASED PAINT

The 104 buildings on the parcels are presumed to contain lead-based paint (LBP) because they were constructed prior to 1978 (1940 through 1976) or have unknown dates of construction. The Army does not intend to abate the LBP presumed to be present in these structures because (in accordance with the residential lead-based paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992) they are not intended to be used as residences. Appropriate LBP notice is provided herein (Attachment 1).

4.2.5.3 RADIOLOGICAL

Two buildings on the parcels (1674 and 3762) are among 230 buildings at former Fort Ord that were suspected to have had storage or use of radioactive commodities at some point in the past but for which no documented evidence exists. In 1994 the buildings were sampled by the U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency (AEHA, currently known as U.S. Army Center for Health Promotion and Preventive Medicine [USACHPPM]). No radiological health hazards were identified for the two buildings sampled, and, in a memorandum dated May 2, 1997, USACHPPM recommended that the buildings be released for unrestricted use. The California Department of Health Services (DHS) released Building 3762 for unrestricted use in a letter dated June 4, 1997. Building 1674 was released for unrestricted use by the DHS in a letter dated October 1, 1997.

4.2.5.4 ORDNANCE & EXPLOSIVES (OE)

No OE locations are known to be on these parcels. One potential OE site (OE Site 2) is located immediately adjacent to Parcel S1.5.1.1, as shown on Plates 1 and 4. Although no ordnance sites are located on the parcels, the potential exists for OE to be present because OE was used throughout the history of Fort Ord. This notice will be included in the deed.

OE Site 2, Pete's Pond, was identified in the Archives Search Report as a chemical training area and a landmine warfare training area. OE Site 2 was sampled for OE in 1994 and two expended inert items were found. A portion of OE Site 2 overlaps Installation and Restoration Program (IRP) Site 16 and is adjacent to IRP Site 17. During the investigation and remediation of IRP Sites 16 and 17, hundreds of 2.36-inch inert practice rockets were removed from burial pits located in former landfill areas within Sites 16 and 17. Landfill areas within OE Site 2 were fully excavated in 1997. Although ordnance was found at OE Site 2, the items were buried in disposal pits and were not associated with ordnance use at the site. The burial area within OE Site 2 has been excavated, backfilled and re-graded. Results of the ASR indicate that OE Site 2 was not an impact area. OE Site 2 was identified as requiring no further sampling and or/removal actions for OE (Action Memorandum 1, Twelve Sites, April 1998).

Additionally, three non-live fire training areas, (two Machine Gun Squares and a Rifle Instruction Circle [RIC]) were formerly located on Parcel S1.4. The Machine Gun Squares and RIC were identified on training maps and aerial photographs. The Machine Gun Squares were used for the practice of setting up and aiming weapons or dry fire training. The RIC training

areas were used in the practice of aiming/sighting of rifles. No evidence has been found that would support the use of live ammunition at the machine gun squares or the RIC.

4.2.5.5 UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)

Forty former underground storage tanks (USTs 1426.1 through .3, 1434.1 through .3, 1487.1, 1489.1 through .3, 1492.1, 1494.1, 1495.1 through .3, 1497.1 through .5, 1636.1, 1670.1, 1670.2, 1680.1, 1685.1 through .3, 1689.1, 1697.1, 1697.2, 1699.1, 3766.1, 3766.2, 3771.1, 3771.2, 3775.1, 3775.2, 4861.1 through .3) were located on the Property (Plate 3; Main Garrison EBS). Closure for these USTs was granted by the Monterey County Department of Health (MCDOH). The following USTs were granted closure in a letter dated January 3, 1994: 1434.3, 1487.1, 1636.1, 1699.1. The following USTs were granted closure in a letter dated April 6, 1994: 1426.1 through .3, 1689.1, 3766.1, 3766.2, 3771.1, 3771.2, 3775.1, 3775.2, 4861.1 through .3. UST 1697.2 was granted closure in a letter dated March 3, 1995. The following USTs were granted closure in a letter dated December 13, 1995: 1434.1, 1434.2, 1489.1, 1489.2, 1494.1, 1495.1, 3010.1. The following USTs were granted closure in a letter dated August 22, 1996: 1685.1 through .3, 1697.1. The following USTs were granted closure in a letter dated August 22, 1996: 1685.1 through .3, 1697.1. The following USTs were granted closure in a letter dated August 22, 1996: 1685.1 through .3, 1697.1, 1495.2, 1495.3, 1497.1 through .5, 1670.1, 1670.2, 1680.1. Thirteen of the 40 USTs contained waste oil. The thirteen former waste oil tanks are: 1487.1, 1489.2, 1489.3, 1492.1, 1494.1, 1495.2, 1495.3, 1636.1, 1680.1, 1689.1, 1697.2, 1699.1, 3766.2.

One UST (1422.1) remains on Parcel S1.5.1.1. UST 1422.1 was formerly used for heating oil storage. Arrangements are currently being made to remove the UST. If a release occurred from UST 1422.1, the Army, if necessary, will remediate (remove) all impacted soil. Additionally, the Army will obtain closure for UST 1422.1 from the MCDOH when State and County requirements are met."

4.2.5.6 ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTs)

No aboveground storage tanks (ASTs) are present on the parcels.

4.2.5.7 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS (SWMUs)

Eighteen inactive solid waste management units (SWMUs) are located on the parcels. The 18 inactive SWMUs (FTO-013, FTO-017, FTO-023, FTO-040, FTO-041, FTO-044, FTO-049 through FTO-054, FTO-056 through FTO-058, FTO-063, FTO-064, and FTO-069) were identified as being former hazardous material storage areas. No hazardous materials are presently stored on the parcels. SWMUs FTO-063, FTO-064, and FTO-069 are recently-identified SWMUs, and no evidence of releases were observed at these three SWMUs during a spring 1996 field investigation (*Draft Field Investigation and Data Review, Solid Waste Management Units, Fort Ord, California*, August 8, 1996). The 1996 SWMU Report recommended no further action for all of the SWMUs on the parcels.

4.2.5.8 INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)

Portions or all of seven Installation Restoration Program (IRP) sites (14, 17, 18, 23, 24, 28, and 38) are located on the parcels. All seven sites were investigated under the Fort Ord Basewide RI/FS program. Based on the results of site characterization activities at these sites (which included soil gas surveys, soil sampling, and monitoring well installation and sampling), IRP Sites 18, 23, 28 and 38 were categorized as No Action Sites. The No Action Record of Decision (NoAROD) for all No Action sites was signed by the Army and regulatory agencies in the spring of 1995. Documentation that site-specific no action criteria were met is provided through the Approval Memoranda process. This process is referred to as the "plug-in" process, because the Approval Memoranda plug into the NoAROD. The No Action Approval Memorandum for Site 28 was approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency on September 25, 1995 and by the Department of Toxic Substances Control on October 10, 1995. The No Action Approval Memorandums for Sites 18, and 23 were issued by the Army, and were concurred in by the DTSC on March 12, 1998 and by the U.S. EPA on March 18, 1998. The No Action Approval Memorandum for Site 38 was issued by the Army, and concurred in by the EPA on July 11, 1996; DTSC concurred on March 12, 1998. IRP Sites 14 and 24 were categorized as Interim Action (IA) sites. The interim action at Sites 14 and 24, completed in June 1995 and May 1996, respectively, included soil excavation, soil sampling, and excavation backfilling at both sites. The Site 14 Confirmation Report was submitted to the regulatory agencies in February 1996. The U.S. EPA concurred that no further remedial action is necessary at Site 14 in a letter dated March 7,1996; the DTSC concurred in February 1998. The IA Confirmation Report for Site 24 was submitted to the regulatory agencies in January 1997. The U.S. EPA concurred that no further remedial action is necessary at Site 24 in a letter dated April 14,1997; the DTSC concurred on March 12, 1998. IRP Site 17 was categorized as a Remedial Investigation (RI) site. Although the boundary of RI Site 17 includes a portion of Parcel S1.5.1.1, the portion of RI Site 17 that required remediation does not occur within Parcel S1.5.1.1. Additionally, the OU 2 groundwater plume underlies some of the parcels (Parcels E17 and S1.5.1.1). As noted below, the remediation system for the OU 2-groundwater plume is operating properly and successfully.

4.2.5.9 COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATION ACT (CERFA)

The final CERFA report indicates that the transfer parcels are included in CERFA Disqualified Parcels 4, 21, 25, 33, 102, CERFA Qualified Parcels 113, 114, and 164, and CERFA Parcels 194, 195, and 213.

The final CERFA report identifies the transfer parcels as being within CERFA Disqualified Parcels 4, 21, 25, 33, and 102. CERFA Parcel 4 was disqualified because of (1) the location of transfer Parcels S1.5.1.1 and E17, above the Fort Ord Landfill (OU 2) groundwater contamination plume, and (2) the inclusion of two of the transfer parcels (L12.2.2 and L12.2.3) in Installation Restoration Program (IRP) Site 28 (see above). Eight monitoring wells, and 1 injection well are on the parcels. Several volatile organic compounds (VOCs) at concentrations below State and Federal maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) have been consistently detected

in monitoring wells on transfer Parcel S1.5.1.1. Trichloroethene (TCE) is also consistently detected at concentrations exceeding its MCL in Extraction Well EW-OU2-06-A (adjacent to transfer Parcel E17). TCE was detected in Extraction Well EW-OU2-06-A at a maximum concentration of 14.8 micrograms per liter (µg/L) in the June 1999 basewide groundwater sampling round. Remediation of the contaminated groundwater is underway. The Army has received concurrence from the U.S. EPA (4 January 1996) that the pump-and-treat system for the remediation of the OU 2-groundwater plume is in place and operating "properly and successfully." Sampling of the monitoring wells present on the transfer parcels will continue under the Fort Ord basewide groundwater sampling program. The Army will reserve the rights of access to all wells on the parcel. Tampering with the wells will be prohibited. CERFA Parcel 21 was disqualified because of a release at IRP Site 24 and the presence of Machine Gun Square 3 (transfer Parcel S1.4). CERFA Parcel 25 was disqualified because hazardous substances were stored in Buildings 3766 and 3767 and due to the presence of USTs and IRP Site 23 (transfer Parcel S1.4). Parcel 33 was disqualified due to hazardous substance storage at Building 4487, which is not on the transfer parcels. CERFA Parcel 102 was disqualified due to the presence of the plant nursery where hazardous materials were suspected to have been stored (transfer Parcel S1.4).

The final CERFA report identifies the property as containing CERFA Qualified Parcels 113, 114, and 164 because of (1) Machine Gun Square 4, (2) the friable and nonfriable ACM observed within the buildings, and (3) the probable existence of LBP based on the construction dates of the buildings within these parcels.

4.2.5.10 GROUNDWATER MONITORING

The Baseline Risk Assessment for OU 2 indicates that the groundwater does not pose a threat to occupants of the parcels provided that groundwater from the contaminated aquifer is not used as a drinking water source. Well drilling and use of groundwater will be prohibited.

4.2.6 Parcels S2.1.3, S2.1.4.1, S2.5.1.1, S2.5.1.2, S2.5.2.1, and S2.5.2.2

One building (502) is located on Parcel S2.1.4.1 (Plate 6). Buildings 501 and 503, formerly present on Parcel S2.4.1.1 were demolished during underground storage tank (UST) removal in January 1996. Building 502 reportedly was used for storage of inflammable materials. A documented list of materials stored at the building was not available. This building was not identified as a hazardous waste storage area, and no releases are known to have occurred. No hazardous materials are currently stored in Building 502. The area around Building 502 is paved.

4.2.6.1 ASBESTOS

An asbestos survey conducted by the Army did not identify any ACM in Building 502.

4.2.6.2 LEAD-BASED PAINT

Building 502 is presumed to contain lead-based paint (LBP) because it was constructed prior to 1978 (1961). The Army does not intend to abate the LBP presumed to be present in this structure because (in accordance with the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992) it is not intended to be used as a residence. Appropriate LBP notice is provided herein (Attachment 1). Based on the fact that Building 502 is surrounded by pavement, lead is not likely to be present in soils around the building.

4.2.6.3 RADIOLOGICAL

No radiological surveys have been conducted within the building because radioactive materials were reportedly not used or stored in the building.

4.2.6.4 ORDNANCE & EXPLOSIVE

No OE locations are known to be within the parcels. One potential OE site, OE Site 2, is adjacent to Parcel S2.5.1.1. The current approximate extent of OE Site 2 is shown on Plate 4. Although no ordnance sites are located on the parcels, the potential exists for OE to be present because OE was used throughout the history of Fort Ord. This notice will be included in the deed.

OE Site 2, Pete's Pond, was identified in the Archives Search Report as a chemical training area and a landmine warfare training area. OE Site 2 was sampled for OE in 1994 and two expended inert items were found. A portion of OE Site 2 overlaps Installation and Restoration Program (IRP) Site 16 and is adjacent to IRP Site 17. During the investigation and remediation of IRP Sites 16 and 17, hundreds of 2.36-inch inert practice rockets were removed from burial pits located in former landfill areas within Sites 16 and 17. Landfill areas within OE Site 2 were fully excavated in 1997. Although ordnance was found at OE Site 2, the items were buried in disposal pits and were not associated with ordnance use at the site. The burial area within OE Site 2 has been excavated, backfilled and re-graded. Results of the ASR indicate that OE Site 2 was not an impact area. OE Site 2 was identified as requiring no further sampling and or/removal actions for OE (Action Memorandum 1, Twelve Sites, April 1998).

Additionally, a non-live fire training area, the Proficiency Training Area (PTA), overlaps a portion of Parcel S2.5.2.2. The PTA was described in a Fort Ord memorandum dated August 9, 1956. The memorandum describes the southern half of the test area as encompassing projected panel site for machine gun manipulation problems. Discussion with Fort Ord Range control indicated that this area was for dry firing training and possible firing of blank rounds.

4.2.6.5 UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (USTs)

Eight USTs (501.1 through 501.4 and 503.1 through 503.4) were formerly located on Parcel S2.1.4.1. The four 10,000-gallon jet fuel tanks and four 25,000-gallon jet fuel tanks were located in a tank farm at Fritzsche Army Airffeld. All eight tanks were removed in January 1996.

Investigations of these USTs are complete, and the Monterey County Department of Health issued a closure letter for all eight USTs on January 6, 1997.

4.2.6.6 INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP)

Three IRP Sites are located on or adjacent to the parcels. Parcel S2.1.3 contains IRP Site 35 and Parcel S2.1.4.1 contains a portion of IRP Site 34. Parcels S2.5.1.1, S2.5.1.2, S2.5.2.1 and S2.5.2.2 overlie the OU 2 groundwater plume.

IRP Site 35, the Aircraft Cannibalization Yard, was characterized as a No Action Site. The "Plug-in" No Action Record of Decision (NoAROD) for all No Action Sites was signed on May 22, 1995. Documentation that site-specific no action criterion was met is provided through the approval memoranda process. This process is referred to as the "plug-in" process, because the Approval Memoranda plug into the NoAROD. The No Action Approval Memorandum for Site 35 was issued by the Army, and approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) on August 2, 1995 and by the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC), Department of Fish and Game and the Regional Water Quality Control Board, on August 18, 1995.

IRP Site 34 is the Fritzsche Army Airfield Fueling Facility. Portions of Site 34 were characterized as an IA site. The Draft Final Site Characterization Report for Site 34 was submitted to the U.S. EPA and DTSC in May 1994. In the draft final report, only Site 34A, Wash Rack 516 in the vicinity of Building 507, was recommended for additional investigation and possible remediation. Site 34A is outside of Parcel S2.1.4.1 and is not included in this transfer. The interim action (IA) approval memorandum for Site 34 was issued by the Army, and approved by the U.S. EPA on February 15, 1995 and the DTSC on February 22, 1995. Based on the Draft Final Site Characterization Report for Site 34 and the IA Approval Memorandum, all remedial actions necessary to protect human health and the environment have been taken for the portion of Site 34 included in this transfer.

Four groundwater monitoring wells (MW-OU2-50-180, MW-OU2-52-180, MW-B-18A and MW-B-20-A) are located on the parcels. Parcels S2.5.1.1, S2.5.1.2, S2.5.2.1 and S2.5.2.2, overlie a portion of the OU 2 groundwater plume. Monitoring Wells MW-OU2-50-180 and MW-OU2-52-180 are located on Parcels S2.5.2.1 and S2.5.1.1, respectively. TCE is consistently detected in these two wells. TCE was detected in Monitoring Well MW-OU2-52-180 at a maximum concentration of 15.3 micrograms per liter (ug/l) in the June 1999 groundwater sampling round. Remediation of the OU 2 groundwater plume is underway. The Army has received concurrence from the U.S. EPA (4 January 1996) that the pump-and-treat-system for the remediation of the OU 2 groundwater plume is in place and operating "properly and successfully." Sampling of the monitoring wells present on Parcels S2.5.1.1 and S2.5.2.1 will continue under the Fort Ord basewide groundwater sampling program. Historically, organic compounds have not been detected in Monitoring Wells MW-B-18-A and MW-B-20-A. These two wells are currently not sampled under the basewide groundwater sampling program.

The Army has recently discovered groundwater contamination consisting of carbon tetrachloride underlying Parcel S2.1.3 and nearby areas. This plume appears to be unrelated to the groundwater plume associated with OU2. A series of monitoring wells have been installed to identify the extent of contamination. MW-BW-32-A is located on the parcel. MW-BW-31-A and MW-BW-27-A are located nearby. Highest concentrations of carbon tetrachloride detected are 15.9 ug/L at MW-BW-27-A, 1.49 ug/L for MW-BW-31-A, and 8.12 ug/L for MW-BW-32-A. The Army is continuing to investigate the extent of contamination associated with this plume. With the participation of U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, California Department of Toxic Substances Control, and California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Coast Region, the Army will propose appropriate remedial measures when the investigation is sufficient to support such a decision.

The Army will reserve the rights of access to all wells on the parcels. Tampering with the wells will be prohibited.

4.2.6.7 GROUNDWATER MONITORING

The Baseline Risk Assessment for OU 2 indicates that the groundwater does not pose a threat to occupants of the parcels, provided that groundwater from the contaminated aquifer is not used as a drinking water source. Well drilling and use of groundwater will be prohibited.

4.2.6.8 COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE FACILITATION ACT (CERFA)

The final CERFA report identifies the transfer parcels as being within CERFA Disqualified Parcels 4, 56 and 57, CERFA Qualified Parcel 99, and CERFA Parcel 212. CERFA Parcel 4 was disqualified due to the location of transfer Parcels S2.5.1.1, S2.5.1.2, S2.5.2.1 and S2.5.2.2 above the OU 2 groundwater plume. CERFA Parcel 56 was disqualified because of IRP Site 34. CERFA Parcel 57 was disqualified because of IRP Site 35. CERFA Qualified Parcel 99 includes the Machine Gun Proficiency training Area. CERFA Parcel 212 is an uncontaminated area located in the southern half of Parcel S2.5.2.1. The Army will reserve the right of access to all wells on the parcels. Tampering with the wells will be prohibited.

Four groundwater monitoring wells (MW-OU2-50-180, MW-OU2-52-180, MW-B-18A and MW-B-20-A) are located on the parcels. Parcels S2.5.1.1, S2.5.1.2, S2.5.2.1 and S2.5.2.2, overlie a portion of the OU 2 groundwater plume. Monitoring Wells MW-OU2-50-180 and MW-OU2-52-180, are located on Parcels S2.5.2.1 and S2.5.1.1, respectively. TCE is consistently detected in these two wells. TCE was detected in Monitoring Well MW-OU2-52-180 at a maximum concentration of 15.3 micrograms per liter (ug/l) in the June 1999 groundwater sampling round. Remediation of the OU 2 groundwater plume is underway. The Army has received concurrence from the U.S. EPA (4 January 1996) that the pump-and-treat-system for the remediation of the OU 2 groundwater plume is in place and operating "properly and successfully." Sampling of the monitoring wells present on Parcels S2.5.1.1 and S2.5.2.1 will continue under the Fort Ord basewide groundwater sampling program. Historically, organic compounds have not been

detected in Monitoring Wells MW-B-18-A and MW-B-20-A. These two wells are currently not sampled under the basewide groundwater sampling program. The Army will reserve the rights of access to all wells on the parcels. Tampering with the wells will be prohibited.

4.2.6.9 LANDFILLS

This property appears to be located within 1000 feet of the landfill at Fort Ord. DTSC understands that methane concentrations in excess of the regulatory limit of 5% by volume have been detected at the landfill boundary. DTSC has been advised by the California Integrated Waste Management Board that given this proximity, there is a potential concern for gas build-up within any structures (including buildings, subsurface vaults, utilities) located within 1000 feet of a landfill. Future landowners should refer to Title 27, section 21190 of the California Code.

5.0 DEED RESTRICTIONS AND NOTIFICATIONS

The environmental documents listed in Section 1.3 were evaluated to identify environmental factors that may warrant constraints on certain activities in order to ensure that it is protective of human health and the environment. Such constraints are generally embodied as restrictions in the Deed or as specific notifications in the Deed or other documents supporting the transaction. The factors that require either deed restrictions or specific notifications are identified in the Environmental Response Obligation Addendum (EROA).

6.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS

On November 2, 1999, public notice of the proposed transfer of the property was provided by publication in two local newspapers of general circulation. Public comments received during the FOSET development were reviewed and incorporated as appropriate. Public comments and responses are provided in Attachment 2.

7.0 REGULATOR COORDINATION

The State of California and the United States Environmental Protection Agency Region IX (EPA) were notified of the initiation of the FOSET in June 1999, and invited to participate in preparing the Draft FOSET. For purposes of this document the term "State of California" shall mean the Department of Toxic Substance Control, and such other agency or instrumentality of the State of California as may have or as may acquire, by operation of law, regulatory jurisdiction concerning response actions. The State of California and EPA were also provided with a thirty (30) day formal comment period on the Draft FOSET concurrently with the public comment period starting November 2, 1999. Comments were received from EPA and State of California

via teleconference in December 1999. The comments were considered and incorporated as appropriate in the finalization of the FOSET.

8.0 FINDING OF SUITABILITY FOR EARLY TRANSFER

The proposal to transfer this property has been adequately assessed and evaluated for (a) the presence of hazardous substances and contamination on the property, (b) environmental impacts anticipated from the intended use of the property, (c) the presence of ordnance and explosives on the property, and (d) the adequacy of use restrictions and notifications to ensure that it is protective of human health and the environment.

The Army is conducting an RI/FS for OE at Fort Ord. In the event the results of the OE RI/FS indicate that further response action is necessary, the Army reserves the right to carry out those actions. One element of this OE RI/FS process is identification of so-called "Track 0 (No Action)" areas. Track 0 areas are those that contain no evidence of OE related activities of any kind. It is anticipated that the parcels included in this FOSET will meet the requirements for inclusion in the Track 0 ROD.

Should this property be considered for the proposed acquisition and/or construction of school properties utilizing State funding, a separate environmental review process in compliance with the California Education Code 17210 et seq. will need to be completed and approved by DTSC.

The future uses of this property do not present a current or future risk to human health or the environment, subject to inclusion and compliance with the appropriate notices and disclosures as addressed in the Environmental Response Obligation Addendum (EROA) at attachment 1.

Provided the restrictions of the Covenant to Restrict Use of Property, to be entered into by the Army and the State of California, are adhered to, no actual or potential hazard exists on the surface of the property from groundwater contamination or from possible soil gas volatilization resulting from groundwater contamination underlying the Property.

CERCLA 120(h)(3)(A)(ii)(I) requires that a covenant indicating that all remedial action necessary to protect human health and the environment with respect to any hazardous substances remaining on the property has been taken prior to transfer by deed. The deferral of the covenant for this property has been adequately assessed and evaluated to assure that: (a) the transfer will not delay environmental response actions, (b) the reuse of the property will not pose a risk to human health or the environment, and (c) the federal government's obligation to perform all necessary response actions will not be affected by the early transfer of this property. The property, therefore, is suitable for early transfer.

The Army will submit to the designated representative of the EPA Administrator, for approval, and the Governor of the State of California, for concurrence, a request that the required covenant

of CERCLA 120(h)(3)(A)(ii)(I) be deferred for this property. The covenant required by CERCLA 120(h)(3)(A)(ii)(II) will be included in the Deed to ensure protection of human health and the environment, to ensure that environmental investigations and remedial activities will not be disrupted, and additional response action found to be necessary after the date of transfer will be accomplished by the Army. A clause will be included in the Deed granting the United States and U.S. EPA access to the property in any case upon reasonable notice where a remedial action, response action, or corrective action is found to be necessary after transfer. The Transferee will receive a warranty authorized under CERCLA 120(h)(3)(C)(iii) when all response actions have been taken in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Facilities Agreement entered into by the Army with U.S. EPA Region IX and the State of California. Pursuant to California Civil Code section 1471(c), the Department of the Army, California Department of Toxic Substance Control, and the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Coast Region has agreed to sign a groundwater covenant to protect present or future human health or safety or the environment. Transfer of property cannot occur until after the request for the covenant deferral is approved by the delegated representative of the EPA Administrator with the concurrence of the Governor of the State of California or his designated representative.

Raymond J. Fatz

Maymond.

Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Army Environment, Safety, and Occupational Health

0 3 DEC 2001